
BIJLLETIN 2317

rTEM

STATE OF NEW JRSEY
Department of Law and Public Safety

DWISION @ A'J@HOLTC BEVERAGE CONIROI,
U.s. Routes 1-9 (Southbound ) Newark, N. J. 07114

!4arch 28, 1979

TABLE OT @NTEMS

1. @ttRT DEcrsroNs - IN THE raTrER oF c. scI lIDt & sol{s, INc. and
c. SCHMID'I e SOltS, INC. OF NEW JRSEY and APPLTCATION OF wM. H. p.
INCE. OF NEW JMSEY - DIREqXOR AFTIRMED.



STATE OF NEI{ JERSEY
Departrent of Iaw and !\lblic Safety

DWISION OF ALCOHOLTC BEVERAGE @![TROL. .

u.s. Routes 1-9 (southbound ) Neh'ark, N.J. 07114

BULI,ETIN 2317

1. @I'RT DECISIOIIS - IN THE T.STTB
& SOtiE, INC. of NEw JERSEY and
DIRECI\]R ATFIRMM.

March 28, 1979

oF c. scHr.rIDT & soNS, INC. and c. scxrMrDT
APPTICATION OF VIM. H. P. INC. OF NEW .'ERSEY

SUPREME COURT OF NEI" JERSEY
A-57/58 - Septernber Term f978

IN THE I{ATTER OF DISCIPLINARY
PROCEEDINGS AGAINST C. SCH}4IDT
& SONS, fNC. and c. SCHMIDT &

SONS, INC. OF NEW JERSEY

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION
OF I{M. H. P. INC. OF NEW JERSEY.

)

)

)

Arsued Decernber 12, re'78 -- Decided m,|(Zt tSlS

On certi.ficatj,on to the Superior Court,
Appellate Division, whose opinion is
reported at 158 N. J. Super. 595 (1978).

-Mr. Leonard A, Peduto, J'.., Deputy Attorne)'
@ for appellant and
cros s-re spondent Division of Alcoholic Bever-
age control- (Mr. John J. Degnan, Attorney
Generaf of New Jersey, attorney; l.Is . Errninie
L. Conley, Assistant Attorney General . of
counsel).

Mr. Arnold M. Me11k argued the cause for
;EsFdAeils eqE' cross-appellants c. schmidt
& Sons, Inc., et al (Messrs. Greenberg &

l4e11k, attorneys).

The opinion of the Court $as delivereil b1'

SUILIVAN, J.

The petition and c ro s s-pe ti t ion

fication herej.n ytere granted primarill'
for certi -
to consider

whether the licensing provisions of the Alcohol,ic Beverage

Control' Act of New Jersey are subject to the Rehabilitated
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Convj.cted offeDder's Act of New Jersey.

The Alcohollc Beverage Control Act, N.J.s'4.

33:1 et seq., Provides in section 25 that "no license of any

class shall be issued to any Person * * * hrho has been

convicted of a crime involving moral turPitude. " The dis-

qualification extends to any corporation of which such a

person is an officer, director or ohrner directly or indirect-

ly of more than 10t of the corPorate stock.

Section 25 of the act additionally bars a

person convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude

from being employed by, or connected in any business

capacity whatsoever with, a licensee. llor"tever, persons

so convj.cted may, rdith the approval of the Director,

and subject to rufes and requlations' be emplolted b1'

a Licensee. AIso, Pursuant to section 31-2, after the

lapse of five years from the date of his conviction, a

person tnay aPply for an order removing the statutory dis-

gualification to llcensure. The Director nay so order,

in his discretion, upon being satisfied that the aPPlicant

haa conducted hinself in a law-abiding manner during that

period and that his association with the alcoholic beverage

industry will not be contrary to the public interest.
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The Fhabilitated Convicted Offender's Act

(RCoA), N.J.S.A. 2A: 168A-1 to -6, provides in section 2 that:

[nl otsrithstanding the contrary provisions
of any ia*t * * * no * * * licensing authority
* * * may disgualify or discrlninate against an
applicanl for a license * r * on the grounds
tirlt tne applicant has been convicted of a
crime * * * except * i r if a conviction * t *
relates adversely to the * r * business for
whj.ch the license * * * is sought.

The same section further provides that if the licensing authority

determines that a Particular conviction does relate adversely'

it is required to "explain in writing" how eight enumerated

faetors llrelate to the license * r * sought. The factors

listed are, (1) the nature of the occuPation or business for

which a ricense is sought, (2) the nature and seriousness of

the crime, (3) the circumstances under which it was conrnitted'

(4) the date of the crime, (5) the age of the Person when the

crime was conmitted, (6) wirether the crime was an isolated or

repeated incident, (?) social conditions which nay have con- 
1

tributed to the crime, and (8) any evidlence of rehabilitation'

RcoA'asoriginallyenactedin196S,nerelypernittedanylicens-
ing board or alenc1t,-' [n]otvithstanding the-contrary Pr""i:i9l:
of any law,' t6 qrlnt an'.PPlication for a I'icenset even though
ii"-ii,eii;;"t trai-uEen conlictedr of crime (other rhan a hish rnis-
aerneai6rl rrhere it appeared to the licensing authority- tlat the
;ilii;;i rraa acfrievib a degree of rehabilitation uhich indicated
tiit licensure sould not be incornpatible wlth the selfare of
;;i.;;-;;-irre arns and obJectivei of the-licensing authoritv'
rnha raarri 'ahAht +I.r-.t- ihc tr.rrrr! or acrenclt rexDlain in wfitinq" etcrtle reQuirenent that the b6ard or agelcy 'exP1ain in.writing" etc'
ras adtded by arrcndnent ln t9?{, L. 7971, c. 151. Ihis amendmentras added by alrcndnent ln I97{, L. L974. c. 16r. Tnrs amenqmenE
lncorporate& verbatim certain changes in the Civil Service Act
attoptid at the gane tire dtealing rith ttre. appointment.of Persons
c"nli"i.a oi crine to civil geriice positions. L. 1974, c' 160'
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By L. L914' c. 161, a new section, L:tr.:ji-:.'jt' 2A:158A-6 ' was

addeil to RcoA Providing that " [tlhis act shall not be ap-

plicable to any law enforcement agency * * *''l

The basic facts herein are undisPuted' Williatn

H. Pflauner is the sole stockholder and President of C' Schmidt

& sons, Inc. and C. Schttlidt & Sons, Inc' of New ilersey' which

corporations are the holders of limiteil licenses issued by

the Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) ' In 1972

Pflaurner pleaded guilty in the Federal District Court in

Pennsylvania to a charge of transPorting improperly labeled

beer in violation of 26 U.s.c3' 55683' In 1974 he pleaded

guilty to both counts of another federal indictment' the

first charging a conspiracy with tavern ovtners to maintain

false records of beer Purchases in violation of 18 U'S'C'A'

S3?1 and the second charging obstruction of justice by attenPt-

ing to influence a ProsPective Grand Jury witness contrary to

18 U.S.C.A. 31503.

As a result of these convictions, the AB9' in Jllne

19?6, conducted a hearing with regard to Pflaumerrs eligibil-

ity for licensing in the alcoholic beverage industtl" on

August 25, Lg76 the Director of the ABC issued a declaratory

ruling that Pftauner had been convicted of acts involving

rcral turPitude and that he and the two Schmidt corporations
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were disqualified under N.J.s.A. 33:1-25 anil -26 from engag-

ing in the alcoholic beverage industry in this State. A

notice of appeal was filed in the APPellate Division by

Pflaumer and the Schnidt corPorations.

while the foregoing administrative matter was pend-

ing, the ABc, in July 1976, held a hearing on an application

for a f irnited transPortation permit made by wm. H. P. Inc.

of New Jersey (V{m. H. P. are the initials of Wif liarn H.

Pflaurner). The ABC oPPosed the application on the ground

that the corporation actually r,{as a 'front" for Pflaumer even

though it r^tas rePresented that he was not an officer, director

or stockholder of the corPoration. At the same time the ABC

considered charies filed against C. Schmidt & Sons, Inc. and

C, Schmidt & Sons, fnc. of Nelv Jersey to suspend or revoke

their existing wholesale licenses on grounds that Pflaumer's

ownership and nanagenent disqualified these corPorations

f rorn holding a license.

On llarch L0, 1977 the Director adoPted the seParate

reports of the ABC hearing officer which recommendled (1) the

suspension of the Schrnidt corPorations' wholesale licenses

because of Pflaumer'3 connections rdith the corPorations, and

(2) the denial of the appllcation of wm. H. P- Inc. of New

Jersey.for a transPortation pernit on the ground that its
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offi€rs ard stocklpl&rs r,ene merely serving as a 'front' for
Pflaun=r. In his orclusions and order suspendting t}|e Sc*midlt @rl:o-

rations' licenses, the Director rejected the contention ttlat

the hearing officer failedl to make the findings reguired

by N.J.S.A. 2A:168A-2, relying on the Attorney Generalrs

forrnal opinion that the provisions of RCOA are not

aPPlicable to an ABC determination of i'hether Persons

convicted of crime are eligible to be associated with

alcoholic beverage industry. Attorney General Pormai

Opinion No. 4, 1975.

An anended notice of appeal was filed in the

. Appellate Division by the Schrnidlt corporations and a

separate notice of appeal filed by Vfn. H. P. Inc. of New

Jersey. On motion by the ABC the two appeals were consol j.-

dated by the Appellate Division.

In the Appellate Division appellants argued that
the Director's find5.ngs that Pflaurerrs two convictions

innolved nolal turpitude and tbat the officers and stock-

holders of Wn. H. P. Inc. of Ner, itersey were serving as a

rfrontr for Pflauner were arbitraly. It -was also contended

that the Directorrs orders abridged the constitutional rights

of appellants. Bowever, appellantsr basic assertion was

that, contrary to the Attorney @neralrs forrnal opinion,
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the ABC, in its licensing activities, is subject to

provisions of RCOA, suPra, and that there hadl been a

to comply with the regulre:nents of that act.

PAGE 7.

the

fa i lure

The appellate Division, in an opinion lePorted at

158 N. J. Super. 595 (1978), held that the only meritorious

question raised by the apPeals was this latter basic asserticn.

As to it the Appellate Division held that' in view of the
2

stated PurPose of the act' and the expansive and afl-encomPass-

ing nature of the actrs Provis j.ons, the ABc in its licensing

activities is subject to the RCOA and must comPly with the

requirernents of that act.

The Appellate Division also held that section 5 of

RCOA, which nakes lhe act non-aPPlicable to any la}t enforce-

ment agency, did not exemPt the ABC from the act's Provisions

as the clear thrust of the statutory excePtion goes to faw

enforcement activities and the persons who perform them, and

does not apply to the licensing functiohs of those agencies-

2
Section I of RCOA provides 3

'll'he legislature finds andl declares that it is in the public
Lnterent to assist the rehabilitation of convicted offenders
by rernoving inrpedlirnents and restrictions upon their ability
to obtain employnent or to participate in vocational or edu-
cational rehabilitation programs based solely uPon the exist-
ence of a criminal record.

llhere fore, the Ieglslature finds and declares that notwith-
etanding the contrary provieions of any lart or rule or regulg- -tion iEiued pursuanC to lar, a PerEon ahal1 not be disqualified
or discrinrinlted against by any- licensing authority because of
any conviction for-a crirne, unless N.J.S. 2A:93-5 is appllcable
or unless the conviction relates adversely to the occuPation,
tra€e ' vocation, profession or business for which the license
or celtificate is tought.
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Accordingly, the Appellate Division leversed those

frortions of the Director's orders which were basedl on the

ineligibility of william H. Pflaumer and remanded these

natters to the ABC for further proceedings on that issue

in conformance l'ith the provisions of N.J.S.A. 2A:158A-2.

lhis Oourt granted the ABC'S Petition ard tlte corlDratidts' o:oss-iEtition

for certification. 77 N. J. 501 (1978). For reasons lereirafter given '

r^e r€lErse trF Par+ of tne APFeuate Divisiqr judqent wirich held that

ttre ABC, in its Licensing activities, is sr:bject to tne FmA.

We are in full agreement with the APPellate Division

holding that the classification of Pflaumerrs tto convictions

as involving moral turpitude within the meaning of N.J.S.A.

33:1-25 was proper, The crimes constituted fraud, dishonesty

and attempting to obstruct justice, all arising out of

Pflaurner's activities in the alcoholic beverage industry.

That such conduct involved moral turpitude cannot be doubted.

See.Zordan v. Deceorqe, 341 U. S. 223,227' 95 L. ed. 886,

890 (1951); Severeni v. State etc. Div. Alcoh. Bev. Cont.,

82 N. J. Super. 1, 4 (APP. Oiv. 1964).

AIso, we agree with the APPeIlate Division determina-

tion that there was sufficient credlble evidence in the record

to support the adninistrative deternination that Pflauner

actually controlleal lTD. H. P. Inc. of New Jersey. As hereto-
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fore noted, the initials wm. H. P. stand for william tl.

Pflaumer. At the hearing on this corPorationts application

for a transportation Permit, it vras shown that Messrs.

Gillan and Ruggiero, the officers and stockholders of the

corporation, wele former employees of Pflauner in corPo-

rations owned or controlled by him, and were still

associated with Pflaumer in another corporation engaged

in the business of transPorting alcoholic beverages.

Following the hearing on wm- H. P. Inc. of Nevi'

Jersey's application for a limited transPortation Permit,

the he;;ing offi.cer reporLed that:

The testimony of Gillan and Ruggiero clearly
evinces the interest of Pflauner in their corpo-
ration. ?he intenroven corPorations of c & R CorP.
and K.M.A. Leasing CorPoration all share cotnmon
officers and facilities. Pflaurner ovns all of
K.u.A. Leasing Co4>. and one-third of c e R corPo-
ration. these two corPorations have assets; the
subject corPoration has no tangible assets, and
merely acts as a condluit for the transPortation
of alcoholic beverages frorn Schrnidt to New Jersey
in vehicles osned by Pflauner completely, leased
through C-G R c€rrPoration ' end then, by way of an

- -- tnrrieat6 leasing plan, to the subject corPoration.

ttis finding that Gillan and Ruggiero htere merely

serving as a front for Pflaunrer is amply suPPorted by the

record.
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Based on the foregoing, it is clear that Pflaumer,

by virtue of his conviction of crines involving moral

turpitude, and any corporation of which he is an officer,
director o! owner directly or indirectly of more than 10*

of the corporate stock, are disqualified from holding an

ABC license by virtue of the provisions of N.J.S.A. 33:1-25,

unless the Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control, in its
licensing aslivities, is subject to the provisions of RCoA,

N.J.S.A. 2A:158A-I et seq. In that event, the ABC would

have to determine if Pflaumer's crirainal convictions

leIate adversely to the business for whj.ch the license I5
sought, and, if so, explain in writing ho$t the eight factors

specified in N.J.S.A. 2A:168A-2 relate to the license sought.

?he liquor business, because of its suscePtibility

to inherent evj.ls, has always been dealt rtith as a subject

apart. Grand Union v. Si1ls, 43 N. J. 390, 398 (1954). we

noted in B1anck v. Mayor and Borouqh Council of Magnolia,

38 N. J. 484 (1962) that from the earliest hiEtor? of our

State the sale of intoxicating liquor has been dealt with

by the Legislature in an exceptional way. Because of its

sui qeneris nature and significance it is a subject by

itself, to which all the analogies of the lart, approPriate

to other adninistrative agencies cannot be indiscrininately

appliid. Id. at 190.
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The Alcoholic Beverage Control Act vests the

Director or other license-issuing authority rrith extensive

regulatory and investigative porrrer over the liguor industry.
N.J.S.A. 33:1-35. As heretofore noted, the act disqualifies
a person convicted of a crime involving nrcra1 turpitude (or

his privies) fron licensure. N.J.S.A. 33:I-25. Honever,

the Director, subject to rules and regulations can approve

the ernpl-oyment of such a person by a licensee, N.J.S.A,

33:1-26, and after the lapse of five years from the date

of conviction may, i.n his dj.scretion, enter an order lemov-

ing the statutory disgual i fication upon being satisfied
that certain statutory conditions have been met. N.J.S.A.
33:I-31.2.

Because of the unique status of
beverage industry, and the Legislature's
of it, we concLude that despite the broad

the alcoholic

special treatment

language of RCOA,

_=-9.8€. the legielature did not intend that that act apply

to the elaborate licensing provisions and contlols spelled
out in the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act.

Even if RCOA should be considered as sufficiently
broad in its scope as to ordinarily encompass the Division
of Alcoholic Beverage Control licensing activities, the new

sectiop added to RCOA in 19?4 vhich specifically provides
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that r ttlhis act shalL not be aPplicable to any law enforce-

nent agency,' U.:.']E:l. 2A:168A-5, makes it clear that the

legislative intent was to exclude the ABC from the Purview

of the act. In this regard, we disagree with the APPellate

Division that this provision relates only to law enforce-

ment activities and not to the licensing functions of law

enforcement agencies .

The Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control is

unique among licensing agencies j'n that it has broad law

enforcement Porders. The Director, his dePuties, insPectols

and investigators have the authority to arrest without

walrant for violations of the ABc act cornmitted in thei'r

presence and have the authority and Powers of peace

officers to enforce the act. N.J.S-A- 33:I-4. InsPectors

and investigators have the duty to arrest all persons they

have reasonable grounds to believe are committing or have

corfldtted a nrisdemeanor under Title 33- 1lhe Director jlq

empote red to insPect and search licensed Premises 'without

search uarranti and subpoena witnesses. Itt. 33:l-35' Adl-

dltionally, the director and his deputies, insPectors and

investigators are exemPt from the provisions of the Concealed

weapons Act, N.J.s.A. 2e:151-{3(p). In short, the Division

of Alcoholic Beverage Control , unlike most other licensing
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agencies, is vested with considerable lan enforcement

porrers, and must be considered a law enforcement agency

within the rneaning of section 5 of RCOA. Consequently,

the provisions of that act are not applicable to it.

It is to be noted that Pflaurner's L972 conviction

is more than five years old and his 1974 conviction

will be in the same category sometime this yea! so that

he is now, or sholtly will be, eligible to make aPPlication

to the Director Pursuant to section 31.2 of the Alcoholic

Bevelage Contlol Act for an order removing the statutory

disqualification to licensure .

APPellants' final contention is that even if

RcoA is not applicable to the licensing Provisions of

the ABC Act, the order of the Director debarring Pflaumer

from licensure deprives hin of equal Protection and due

process and i5 violative of the bill of attainder clause

of the gnited States Constitution' Art. I, Sl0. These

contentions lack nerit.

Applicants. ln urging that the Legislature intended to
inliude ABC'licensure within the remedial scoPe of RcoA,
rely on a Decer{ter 19?5 affidavit of RCoArs sPonsor, -nadefn -connectton with this litigation. The APPeltate Division
decllned to conslder the non-contemPoraneous staten€nt as
an appropriate extrinsic aid to construction. we agree
that lt should not be considered.
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At the risk of repetition, it must be emphasized

that the state has a legitimate interest in regulating

the operation of the liquor industrY in the Pub1ic interest

anil protecting it frorn social dangers to rhich it is in-

herently susceptible. Canada Dry Ginger Ale, Inc. v.

F. & A. Distrib. Co., 28 N. ,t. 444 (1958). State provisions

disqualifying convicted felons from certain enployrnents

important to the public interest have been held not to

violate principles of equal Protection. Deveau v- Braisted,

363 U. S. 144, 159, 4 L. edl. 2cl 1109, 1120 (1950). Here the

statutory disgualification is linited to Persons convicted

of crime involving noral turPitude, i.e., fraud, corruption

or dishonesty. lo bar such a class from activity in the

highly sensitive liguor industrl clearly is in the Public

interest. t{hile the statute does not require that such

convictions be directly related to activities in the

liquor industry, in the instant case Pflaumer's convictions

unquestionably are in that catego!:f.

As for due process, Pflaume! was given a hearing

as to whether his convictions were for crimes involving

rcral turpitude. Eowever, he objects tbat the hearing did

not encompass the Pertinent question of Present rehabilita-

tion and there fore denled due process. 'ittris argunrent fails
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to consider the specific provisi'ons in the ABc Act,

" eection 31.2, which pe rrait a Person convicted of crirne

involving noral turPitude to aPPly to have the statutory

disqual i fication lemoveil where it appears that he has

been rehabilitated and his licensure will not be contrary

to the public interest. True, the statute mandates a

lapse of five years from the date of conviction before

such an application can be made, but we see no denial

of due Process per se where the statute fixes a minimum

period of absolute disguali fication, so long as such

period is not shor,tn to be manifestly arbitrary and unreason-

ab1e. No such showing has been rnade. Uoreover, as rdas

noted above, trpre than five years have elaPsed since

Pflaumer's 19?2 conviction, and his 1974 conviction either

now is, or shortly will be, in the s ame category.

Granting that aPPellants herein, whose licenses

have been revoked or suspendled, assert interests tthich are

encompassed by the fourteenth annendment I s protection of

liberty and ProPerty' ultinately the guestion is whether

the State has atruck a Proper balance between the need to

protect the public interest and an offender's oPPortunity

to offer evidence of rehabilitation. l{e find a ProPer

balance .to have been struck.
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. the contention that the disqualification of

Pflauner is a bill of attainder Prohibited under Art' I'

S1o of the United states Constitution is also lacking

in nerit. The distinguishing feature of a bill of

attainder is the Eubstitution of a legislative for a

jutticial deternination of guilt' Deveau v' Braisted'

suptir 363 u. s. at 160, 4 L' ed' 2il at 1120' Other

elements are that it is directed at naned persons or

members of a readily ascertainable group and also consti-

tutes Punishment without a judlicial trial' United states

v. Brown, 381 U. S. 437. 147'449, 14 L' ed' 2d 484' 491-

492 (196s).

In Deveau v. Braisted, suPra, 363 u' s' at 150'

4 L. ed. 2d at 1120, it was noted that a statutory exclusion

made on the basis of a crininal offender's prior conviction

'gtnbed[iesl no further funplication of the ex-offender's

guilt than sas containedt in his * r * judicial conviction' "

Beyond that, the statute here involved is desigmed' not to

impose Punishrent on a Peraon for a previous conviction' but

rather to exercise uhat sas felt to be a nuch needed system

of control of an industry ln nhich the State and the public

have a legitinate regrulatory interest'

The Judlgnent of the APpellate Division is affirned

except for its deternination that the licensing provisions

of the ABC Act are subJect to the RCOA - fhat Part of its
j udlgment is reversed.
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IN THE MATTER OF DTSCIPLINARY
PROCEEDINGS AGAINST C. SCHMIDT
& SONS, INC. and C. SCHMIDT &
SONS. INC. OF IIEW JERSEY

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION
OF h}I . H. P. INC. OF NEW JERSEY.

PASHMAN, J., concurring and dissenting.

I concur fully in the opinion of the majority

excepE insofar as it holds that the Rehabilitated Convicted

Offenders Act (RCOA), N.J.S.A. 2A:168A-I et seq., does not

apply to licensing decisions of the Division of Alcoholic

Beverage ConErol (ABC). On that issue, I respectfully
dissent for substantially the reasons stated by Judge Pressler

writing for the Appellate Division. In re Disciplinarv
Proceedings Against C. Schmidt & Sons, Inc., l{.J.Super.

(App.Div. L979). Although the najority's contention that the

ABC fits within the statutory exemption for law enforcement

agencies is not without considerable appeal, on balance I
beLieve that the renedial natule of RCOA dictates it.s

application absent a clear expression of legislative intent

to the contrary.

I vould therefore remand this natter to the ABC

further proceedings consistent with the provisions of

RCOA.
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